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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Lafayette Regional Airport 
Lafayette, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lafayette Regional Airport, 
A Component Unit of the Consolidated Government of Lafayette, Louisiana as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Airport's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Airport, as of Error! No document variable 
supplied., and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Lafayette Parish Regional Airport and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Lafayette Regional Airport's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the tinancial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance hut is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Gtwemment Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud mav involve collusion. forgery, intentional ornissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that. individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made hy a reasonable user hased on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Goverinnent Auditing Standards. we 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the tinancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks. Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis. ev idence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Airport's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonahleness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluate the ov erall presentation of the financial statements. 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estiinates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements 

• conclude whether. in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt ahout the Airport's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonahle period of time 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis. Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability. and Schedule of Ernployer Contributions be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, econornic. or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonnation for 
consistency n ith management's responses to our inquiries, the hasic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the inforrnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forrning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Airport's basic financial statements. The accornpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code Qf Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200. UnijOrm 
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Requirementsjiw Federal Awards, and is not a required part of 
the financial statements The remaining supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
passenger facility charges collected and expended is presented for purposes of additional analysis as specified in the 
Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies. issued hy the Federal Aviation Administration, and is also 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The supplemental information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management 
and were derived frorn and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
staternents. Such infonnation has been sub,jected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial 
staternents and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the hasic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

In our opinion, the supplemental information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all 
rnaterial respects. in relation to the basic financial staternents as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24. 2024, on our 
consideration of the Lafayette Regional Airport's internal control over tinancial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over tinancial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lafayette Regional Airport's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditmg Standards in considering Lafayette Regional Airport's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

DarnaCC Sikes & Frec&rick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 

June 24, /014 
Lafayette, Louisiana 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the Lafayette 
Regional Airport's activities and financial performance for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. 

AIRPORT ACTIVITIES & HIGHLIGHTS 

+ Lafayette Regional Airport's 2023 enplanement numbers reached 234,177, which was a 1.0% 
increase over the 2022 year. Deplanements were 231,333 which was a 2.3% increase from the 
prior year. In addition, Cargo operations continued to be steady showing that 27,787,467 
pounds passed through the airport in 2023. 

+ As for flight loads, Delta flights to Atlanta recorded a 77.2% load factor, followed closely by 
United flights to Houston with 74.5%, and American Eagle flights to both Dallas and Charlotte 
with a 67.9% of outgoing seats filled in 2023. In addition, the Airport continues to work with 
these and other carriers to bring additional service to the Lafayette area. 

+ January 20, 2023, marked the first anniversary for flights and passengers departing LFT from 
the new state of the art 120,000 square foot Terminal. The project was completed in 2022 
under budget, on time, and debt free. 

+ In 2023, The Lafayette Airport Commission approved the demolition of 113 Borman to make 
way for the construction of the Ce11 Phone Waiting Area. This area is designed for persons 
coming to the airport to pick up passengers to have an area where they can wait for the call 
that the passenger they are there to pick up is ready and out front. This prevents circling the 
airport driveway, illegally parking along the roadway and having to use the pay parking lots 
for short wait times. 

+ In October of 2023, the Commission held its Annual Aviation Fun Day at the Airport's 
Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Facility. There were over 150 children and adults 
that attended and enjoyed a tour of the airport grounds, a great lunch and numerous contests 
with prizes. A goody bag filled with Airport and airline industry items from many sponsors 
was provided for each attending child in an effort to promote the Aviation industry. 

+ Major projects put into service in 2023 include the redesign of Borman Dr. and the airport 
employee parking areas, as well as additional expansion and enhancements of the airport long 
terrn public parking lots. In addition, the new perimeter fence from Borman Dr. to Tower Dr. 
was completed. These projects are designed to enhance overall safety and facilitate future 
growth of Lafayette Regional Airport. 

+ Several projects still in progress at the end of 2023 include the final Phase of Twy Foxtrot 
from Rwy 11 29 to the North end of Twy Lima. In addition, work continues on an additional 
section of new perimeter fencing from Tower Dr. to the southeast corner of Hwy 90. 
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± The main project in the design phase and scheduled to begin in 2024 is the Airfield Electrical 
Energy Efficiency Irnprovements. This project is designed to improve efficiency and overall 
safety of the airport while enhancing the passenger's experience. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

+ Operating Revenues grew by 4.6% in 2023 from 2022 going from $10.8 million to $11.4 
million. Parking Revenues increased by 13.3% while Rental Car Revenues grew by 6.3%, 
and Hangar Rental revenues decreased by 7.5%. The increase from Capital Grants revenues 
of $1.1 million is a result of the ongoing reimbursements through various funding sources for 
the New LFT Terminal project. (Table 3) 

+ Operating Expenses increased slightly from 2022 changing from $21.4 million to $22.4 
million due primarily to increases in Professional Fees and Insurance Costs for the New 
Terminal, as well as in Depreciation costs. It should be noted that there was a decrease in 
Telephone & Utility costs. (Table 4) 

+ Non-Operating Income (Expenses), excluding Capital Grants and the 1% Airport Tax, 
changed from a net income of $6,236,866 in 2022 to a net income of $9,057,547 in 2023. 
This category also reported an 252.6% increase in Interest Income earned over 2022 as 
interest rates remained high in 2023. In addition, the -$699,086 figure for the Proceeds from 
the Sale of Assets in 2022 reflected the one-time removal of some old Terrninal Assets not 
yet fully depreciated. 

+ Net position of our business-type activity for 2023 increased to $14.6 million or 4.5%, 
compared to a 3.5% increase in 2022. The increase for 2023 is largely due to increases in our 
Capital Assets. (Table 1) 

+ Additional funding for Airport operations is received through ad valorem tax revenue. In 
2023 the Airport received approximately $4.31 million in revenues which is a slight increase 
from the $3.98 million in 2022. 

+ Capital Grants and Contributions received in 2023 were $16,343,407 compared to 
$15,210,254 in 2022. These grants are directly related to the construction of the new terminal 
and the various Airport Improvement Program grants which are funded at the federal and 
state level and fluctuate from year-to-year dependent upon the funding and schedules of the 
Airport's capital projects. 

+ 2023 is the second LAC audit year for implementation of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) 87 Leases which requires governmental entities to recognize lease 
assets and liabilities in order to better meet the information needs of governmental financial 
statement users. Since GASB 87 became effective for reporting periods after June 15, 2021, 
this report contains results of the comparative information for 2022 through 2023. See 
footnotes (I) and (R) of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

- 5 — 



USING THIS REPORT 

Reporting the Airport as a Whole 

The Statement of Net Position reports information about the Airport as a whole and its activities in a 
way that helps answer the question "Is the Airport as a whole better or worse off as a result of the 
year's activities?" This statement includes a11 assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All current 
year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid 

This staternent reports the Airport's net assets and changes in them. Net assets (the difference 
between assets and liabilities) are one way to measure the .Airport's financial health. or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Airport's net assets are one indicator of whether its 
financial health is irnproving or deteriorating You will need to consider other non-financial factors, 
however. such as changes in the Airport's property tax base and mil lage rates. as well as capital grant 
awards, to assess the overall health of the Airport. 

In the Statement of Net Position, we report the Airport by activity. The Airport's only operation is 
that of Airport Services which represents the fees charged to customers to help cover most of the cost 
of the services provided. The property tax revenue is also reported in this fund since it is dedicated to 
the operations and maintenance of the Airport 

Reporting the Airport's Significant Funds 

At the recommendation of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office. the Airport dissolved the 
Cieneral Fund in the 2007 fiscal year. The revenues and expenditures that were previously reported 
within the General Fund are now included in the Proprietary Fund financial statements. Following is 
a description of the Proprietary Fund: 

+ Proprietary Fund - When the Airport charges customers for the services it provides. these 
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the 
same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Staternent of 
Activities. The Airport's proprietary fund is the same as the business-type activities we 
report in the go% ernment-wide statements but pro% ide rnore detail and additional 
information, such as cash flows 

THE AIRPORT AS A WHOLE 

The Airport's total assets increased just over 3.7% in the current year, from $346 million to S339 
nullion. The increase is due to the growth in Capital Assets of $12.6M Our following analysis 
focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Airport's business-
type activities. Table 2 reflects collections from Passenger Facility Charges and Customer Facility 
Charges, even though these are not operating revenues. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Capital Assets 

At the end of December 31, 2023, the Airport had $280.7 million invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt, including all equipment, land and buildings. This represents a net increase of $11.0 
million, or 4.1%, over the 2022 amount of $269.6 million. 

During 2023, the airport expended $18.1 million on capital activities. This expenditure included 
funds spent for any airport construction and improvement projects previously listed in this report 
under Airport Activities and Highlights - including the completion of the construction of a new 
Terminal designed to enhance overall safety, as well as to help with future growth and capacity of 
Lafayette Regional Airport. 

Debt 

The Lafayette Airport Commission in 2018 received approval from the State Bond Commission to 
use Bonds in the financing of the New Terminal Project if necessary. However, no bonds were 
needed or issued. In addition, there were two lines of credit opened: one backed by the CFC Funds 
for the construction in 2020 of the Rental Car Quick Turn Around Facility and the second by the PFC 
Fund for multiple portions of the New LFT Terminal. As of the end of 2022, these lines of credit had 
been closed and the Lafayette Airport Commission currently has no debt. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 

The business-type activities will see changes due to economic factors as well as continued capital 
improvements funded by various grants. Several of the economic factors considered in the budgetary 
process were: 

± The economic environment of the airline industry as a whole including continued increases 
in the cost of fuel and security. 

• Consumer price index adjustments, which allows for modifications in rental changes to 
tenants of the Airport Commission. 

+ Escalating costs of operations including Insurance, Repairs and Maintenance, Utilities, 
Professional, Security and other contractual services. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is written to provide a general overview of the Lafayette Regional Airport's 
financial position for all interested parties and to show the Airport's accountability for the money it 
receives. Questions concerning any of the information in the report should be addressed in writing to 
the Financial Comptroller, Lafayette Regional Airport, 200 Terminal Drive, Suite 200, Lafayette, 
Louisiana 70508. 
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Table 1 
NET POSITION 

ASSETS 

Business-type 
Activities 

Total Priman 
Government 

1013 "0"2 2023 2(12' 

    

Current Assets $ 69.348.3911 3 58.286.804 $ 69,348,390 S 58./86,804 
Capital Assets 180,69'.1?' 269.635,005 280.692,122 269.635.005 

Min-Current Assets 8.975.347 18.443.087 8.975.347 18.443.087 

TOTAL ASSETS S 1-39,0V 340.364.896 $ 359.015.859 $ 346_364.896 

Deferred Outflows S 1.096.9x l w 132.342 1,096981 $ 132.34' 

LIABILITIES: 

    

Current Liabilities S 6,869.401 $ 9,727,476 $ 6.869.4(11 $ 9.727.476 
Non-Current Liabilities 1.385.9, 7 400.539 1.385.917 41)0.539 

Total Liabilities ti 8,255.328 $ 10,128.015 S 8.255.328 S 10,128.015 

Deferred Inflows 8.6'1.5'3 $ 7,893.388 S 8.621.523 $ 7.893,388 

NET POSITION. 

    

Net Investment in Capital Assets S 280.692.122 $ 269.635.005 S 180.692.111 $ 269.635.005 
Restricted - PFC 1.353.136 635,151 1.353,136 635.252 
Restricted - CFC 334.282 478.964 334.182 478.964 

Restncted - New Terminal 16.178 4,540.527 16.178 4.540,527 
Unrestricted 60.840,271 3 .16.0S7 61).840.271 53,180.087 

Total Net Posinon s ;4113-; osk) 1'8,47581-3 S 143 9S9 5 3'8.475.835 
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Table 2 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Revenues 

Program Revenues 

Business-type 

Activities 

Total Pnmary 

Government 

 

2023 2022 20, 3 

      

Chaipes for Services S 11.640.630 $ 11.035,097 $ 11.640,630 $ I 1.0:;5 097 

Operating Grants 109.500 109.5i )0 109,500 

 

109,500 

Capital Grants anti 

Contributions 16.343.407 15.210.254 l6.343,407 

 

15.210.254 

Passenger Facility Charges 948.470 921.094 948.470 

 

921.04)4 

Customer Facility Charges 1.031,126 949.830 1,031,126 

 

949,830 

Geneial Reveimes. 

Property Taxes -1,264.561 3.941,796 4.264,561 

 

3,941,796 

Other Revenue 146.701 292.662 146.701 

 

292.662 

Srate Revenue Sharing 48.736 45.854 48.736 

 

45.854 

1°(. Airpoit Tax 1.549 29.1163 1,549 

 

29.063 

Land & Bldg Lease Rev (GASB 87) (3115.424) (233.241) (305,424) 

 

(283,2411 

Pension Related 23,080 17.634 1•  tnso 

 

17,684 

Investment Earnings 2.701.323 766.059 2.701,323 

 

766,059 

Gain on Sale of Assets 

 

(699.086) 

  

(699.086) 

Total Revenues 36.953,659 32,336.565 36,953,659 

 

12.336,565 

Program Expenses 

     

Administration 2.482.964 2.236.416 2,482,964 

 

2.236.416 

Telepliones & Uhlities 947,660 1,089.030 947,660 

 

1,089,030 

Suppl les & Materials 52.883 46.983 52,883 

 

46.983 

Repairs & Maintenance 1.631.952 1.468.429 1.631.952 

 

1.468.429 

Seciltity 1.241.866 1.169.614 1.241.866 

 

1.169.614 

ARFF 760,377 734.351 760,377 

 

734,351 

Professional Fees 620.092 519,536 620,092 

 

519,536 

Insurance 723.729 620.410 723,729 

 

620,410 

Contracnial Services 963.151 994.540 963.151 

 

994,540 

Depreciation 12.777.384 12.565.527 12.777,38-1 

 

12.565.527 

Pension Related 193.343 (333.631) 14.6.343 

 

(333.631) 

Bond Expense 

     

Total Expenses 22.3,15.401 21.111.205 '2.395,401 

 

21.111.205 

hicrease in Net Position 1/4, 14.558.25s: 11.225:460 g 14.558.760 

  

- 9 - 



Terminal 
Rent/Charges 

21% 2% 

Gra 
Revenue 

Car Wash Revenues 
1% 

Parking 
18% 

Rental Cars 
10% 

Landing Fees 
Other 12% 
1% 

Land & Non-
Terminal Facilities 

26% 

ngar Rentals 
6% 

Fuel Flowage Fees 
1% 

Table 3 
REVENUES 

The following chart shows the major sources and percentage of operating revenues of the proprietaiy fund for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022: 

Land & Bldg Lease Operating Revenues 
Rev (GASB 87 

-3% 

Operating Revenues: 

2023 2022 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

from 2022 

Percent 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Landing Fees $ 1,494,339 $ 1,503,548 $ (9,209) -0.6% 
Terminal Rent/Charges 2,562,389 2,458,228 104,161 4.2% 
Hangar Rentals 707,944 764,974 (57,030) -7.5% 
Fuel Flowage Fees 139,750 146,624 (6,874) -4.7% 
Land & Non-Terminal Facilities 3,109,088 2,948,442 160,646 5.4% 
Rental Cars 1,251,257 1,177,273 73,984 6.3% 
Parking 2,146,700 1,893,963 252,737 13.3% 
Car Wash Revenues 72,852 58,737 14,115 0.0% 
Grant Revenues 109,500 109,500 

 

0.0% 
Land & Bldg Lease Rev (GASB 87) (305,424) (283,241) (22,183) 0.0% 
Other 155,337 82,333 73,004 88.7% 

Total Operating Revenues 11,443,732 10,860,381 583,351 5.4% 

Non-Operating Revenues: 

    

Interest Income 2,701,323 766,059 1,935,264 252.6% 
Other Revenue 147,675 293,636 (145,961) -49.7% 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 

 

(699,086) 699,086 -100.0% 
Pension Related 23,080 17,684 5,396 30.5% 
Operation & Maintenance Tax 4,313,297 3,987,650 325,647 8.2% 
Passenger Facility Charges 948,470 921,094 27,376 3.0% 
Customer Facility Charges 1,031,126 949,830 81,296 8.6% 
1% Airport Tax 1,549 29,063 (27,514) -94.7% 
Capital Grants and Contributions 16,343,407 15,210,254 1,133,153 7.4% 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 25,509,927 21,476,184 4,033,744 18.8% 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 36,953,659 $ 32,336,565 $ 4,617,094 14.3% 
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Administration 
11% 

Operating Expenses 

Telephones & 
Utilities 

4% Repairs & 
Maintenance 

7% 

Depreciation 
58% 

Other 
Contractual Insurance 

Services 3% 
4% 

Security 
6% 

ARFF 
4% 

Professional Fees 
3% 

Table 4 
EXPENSES 

The following chart shows the major sources and percentage of operating revenues of the proprietaiy fund for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and Deceinber 31, 2022: 

Operating Expenses: 

2023 2022 

Increase 
(Decrease) 
from 2022 

Percent 
hicrease 

(Decrease) 
Administration $ 2,482,964 $ 2,236,416 $ 246,548 11.0% 
Telephones & Utilities 947,660 1,089,030 (141,370) -13.0% 
Supplies & Materials 52,883 46,983 5,900 12.6% 
Repairs & Maintenance 1,631,952 1,468,429 163,523 11.1% 
Security 1,241,866 1,169,614 72,252 6.2% 
ARFF 760,377 734,351 26,026 3.5% 
Professional Fees 620,092 519,536 100,556 19.4% 
Insurance 723,729 620,410 103,319 16.7% 
Other Contractual Services 963,151 994,540 (31,389) -3.2% 
Depreciation 12,777,384 12,565,527 211,857 1.7% 

Total Operating Expenses 22,202,058 21,444,836 757,222 3.5% 

Non-Operating Expenses: 

    

Pension Related 193,343 (333,631) 526,974 158.0% 
Bond Related 

   

#DIV/0! 

Total Non-Operating Expenses 193,343 (333,631) 526,974 

 

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 22,395,401 $ 21,111,205 $ 1,284,196 6.1% 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31. 2023 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 48,304,869 

Accounts Recei% able 466,561 

Ad Valorem Tax Receivable 1.705,701 

Due From Sheriff 2.722,544 

Grant Funds Receivable 12.638.564 
Leases Receivable - Short-Term 2.300,020 
Prepaids 769.456 

Total Current Assets 68.907,715 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash 

 

Grant Funds 1,696,094 

PFC Funds 1,353,136 

CFC Funds 334,282 

1% Airport Tax 16.178 

Total Restricted Assets 3399  690 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPNIENT 

 

Property and Equipment 268,660.213 

Land 6.191,076 
Constniction in Progress 151.935,168 

Total 42(1.786,457 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (146.094,335) 

Net Property and Equipment 780.697,171 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 

Leases Receivable - Long-Term 5.946,609 

Security Deposits 69,723 

Total Non-Current Assets 6,016,332 

TOTAL ASSE TS S 359.015,859 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 

Pension Related 1.096.9S 1 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31. 2023 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 

Accounts Payable S 5,404,397 

Accrues' Expenses 1,408,822 

Unearned Revenue 56,182 

Total Current Liabilities 6.869,401 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 

Security Deposits 306,145 
Accrued Compensated Absences 126,487 

Net Pension Liability 953.195 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1.385,917 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8.255,328 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 

Pension Related 133,393 
Leases 8,258,918 

Property Taws 229,21? 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 8.61 1.5?3 

NET POSITION 

 

Net Investment m Capital Assets S 280,692.122 
Expendable: 

 

Restricted for PFC Projects 1,353,136 

Restricted for New Commercial Terminal 16,178 

Restricted for CFC Projects 334,282 

Unrestricted 60.840,271 

TOTAL NET POSITION 343.135,Wio 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

STATEIIIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

OPERATING REVENITS 

 

Rentals $ 7.325,254 
Commissions 139,750 
Landing Fees 1.494,339 
Parking Tolls 2.146,700 
Grant Revenues 109,500 
Car Wash Revenues 72,851 
Miscellaneous 155,337 

Total Operating Revenues 11,443.732 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

 

Salaries and Costs of Employment 2,637,622 
Supplies 52,883 
Other Services and Charges 6.927,512 
Depreciation 12.777,384 

Total Operating Expenses ".395,401 

OPERATING LOSS (10.951,669) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

 

Interest Income 2,701,323 
Other Revenue 147,675 
Capital Grant Revenue 16,343,407 
Ad Valorem Tax Revenue 4,264,561 
State Revenue Sharing 48,736 
1% Airport Tax 1,549 
Non-Employer Pension Contribution 23,080 

Passenger Facilitv Charges 948,470 
Custotner Facihty Charges 1.031,126 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) /5.509,917 

INCREASE IN NET POSITION 14,558,258 

NET POSITIC)N, BEGINNING (AS RESTATED, SEE NOTE R) 318,677,731 

NET POSITIC)N, ENDING $ 343,235,989  

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 

A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFA1 ETTE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

  

Cash Received Frorn Providing Services $ (1.599,326 

 

Received from Other Sources 147,675 

 

Cash Pahl Supphers (9.838,454) 

 

Cash Paid to Employees (2.45(►,631) 

 

Net Cash Pro% ided By Operating Activities 

 

S (542,084) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  

Investment Interest Received 2,70(.323 

 

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activalies 

 

2,70(.323 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

Ad Valorem Tax Revenue 3.142.128 

 

Net Cash Pro% ided By Non-Capital Financing Activities 

 

3,142.1.Di 

C:ASH FLOWS FRONI CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

Capital Grants Received 19.50(►,604 

 

Acquisition and Constntction of Fixed Assets (23.834,501) 

 

1% Tax Revenue 1,549 

 

Other Funds Recen ed 1.979,596 

 

Net Cash (Used In) Capital and Financing Activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

(includine $12,486,755 in restricted cash) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

(Including $3,399.690 in restricted cash) 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements. 
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(2,352,752) 

2.948,615 

48,755.944  

S 51,704,559  

  



LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - continued 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Loss $ (10,951,669) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Loss From Operations to Net Cash 

Provided By Operating Activities: 
Loss on Sale of Property and Equipment 
Prior Period Adjustment 201,896 

Depreciation 12.777,384 

Other Revenue 147,675 

Provision for Net Pension Liability, Net 193,343 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
Accounts Receivable (,3,366 

Leases Receivable 1

(3

10
7:7

3
9
0

5

2)

)

 

Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable (1,803,155) 

(1,055,554) Accrued Expenses 
Unearned Revenue 634 

Security Deposits 38,445 

Accrued Compensated Absences (6,3521 

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (542,084) 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(A) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Reporting Entity - Lafayette Regional Airport is a municipally owned, non-hub airport located on U. S. 
Highway 90 East in the City of Lafayette. The Airport provides passenger service through three regional 
carriers. The major source of revenue for the Airport is rentals on buildings, hangars, land, and terminal space. 

The Lafayette Regional Airport is a component unit, jointly reaffirmed by ordinances from both the Lafayette 
City Council and the Lafayette Parish Council in 2020. The Airport constitutes a legal entity separate and apart 
from these Councils which were previously recognized as a Consolidated Government. The Airport continues 
to be governed by a seven-member, non-elected commission. Three members are appointed by the Lafayette 
City Council, two members are appointed by the Lafayette Parish Council, one member is appointed by the 
Mayor-President, and one member is appointed by the mayors of the various municipalities surrounding 
Lafayette. 

The financial information contained in these statements is only that of the Lafayette Regional Airport and 
includes all funds over which the Airport exercises oversight responsibility. This responsibility includes 
financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly 
influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. 

Basis of Presentation - The Lafayette Regional Airport, reported in these statements as a proprietary fund, 
prepares its financial statements in accordance with the standards established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. FASB ASC Section 2100 — Defining the Financial Reporting Entity established 
criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within 
the reporting entity. The Lafayette Regional Airport is considered to be a component unit of the Consolidated 
Government of Lafayette, Louisiana. The accompanying statements present only transactions of the Airport, a 
component unit of the Consolidated Government of Lafayette, Louisiana. 

Basis of Accounting - The Airport maintains its books and records using the "economic resources" 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement of 
Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) 
and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in 
the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The accounts of the Airport are in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Such accounting and reporting policies also conform to the 
requirements of Louisiana Revised Statute 24:517 and to the guidelines set forth in the Louisiana Governmental 
Audit Guide. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for 
rental of facilities, sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of leasing, sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. A11 revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(A) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Bash of Accounting - continued 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Airport 's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Net Position - In the financial statements, equity is classitied as net position and displayed in three 
components: 

Net investment in capital assets - This cotnponent of net positiun consists of capital assets. inchiding 
restricted capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstandine balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings and deferred inflows of resources attributahle to the 
acquisition, constniction, or impro‘ement of those assets and increased by balances of deferred outflows of 
resources related to those assets. 

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net asset use through external 
constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants). grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governinents or constraints irnposed by law through constitutionaE provisions or 
enabling legislation 

Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of net position that du nut meet the 
detinition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

Revenue Recognition - Property taxes are hilled and collected within the same period in which the taxes are 
levied. Subsidies and grants to proprietary fiinds. which finance either capital or current operations, are reported 
as non-operating revenue based on GASBS No 33 In applying GASBS No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider 
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable 
eligibility requirements, including tirne requirements, are met Resources transmitted before the eligibility 
requirements are met are reported as advances hy the provider and unearned revenue by the recipient. 

Landing and airfield fees, terminal building, rental building, and leased areas rentals are recorded as revenues 
during the year in which earned 

Property and Equipment - Depreciation of all exhaustihle fixed assets is charged as an expense against 
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the Statement of Net Position Depreciation has heen 
provided over the estimated useful 
assets are as follows: 

es using the straight-line method. The estimated useful Eives of fixed 

Years 
Hangars and Buildings 10 - 30 
Runways and Navigation Aids 10 - 20 
Service Roads and Parking 1(1 - 20 
Other Permanent Improvements I() - 
Equipment 3 - I () 
Lease Purchase Equipment 

 

5 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(A) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Property and Equipment - continued 

Land and other capital improvements acquired by the Airport prior to Octoher 31, 1971, are stated at 
replacernent cost as of that date, as historical cost information was not rnaintained prior to this time. Land 
acquisitions, which occurred prior to October 31, 1971, are stated at an estimated replacement cost of 
S4,834,560. which approximates S2,600 per acre. All capital improvernents acquired prior to this date are fully 
depreciated, and, as such, have no remaining book vahie at the balance sheet date All subsequent asset 
purchases are stated at cost. The Airport has a policy in place which requires the capitalization of all asset 
purchases of S1,000 or greater. No asset values have heen recorded for various improvements constructed by 
tenants at their own expense, which improvements will revert to the Airport at the expiration of the apphcable 
leases. 

Prepaid Items- Payrnents made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond vear end are recorded 
as prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets - Proceeds from certain resources of the Airport are classified as restricted assets on the 
Statement of Net Position because their use is limited by grant agreements or ordinances. 

Compensated Absences - Employees of the Airport earn annual leave in amounts from S to 12 hours per 
rnonth hased on years of ser% ice. Annual leave rnay he carried forward provided the arnount carried forward 
does not exceed two years of an employee's earned annual leave. Unused annual leave (in excess of what can be 
canied forward) shall he used or surrendered. Upon termination, employees are paid for all accumulated annual 
leave. 

Sick leave is credited to a11 classified employees at the rate of eight hours per rnonth. All unused sick leave is 
carried forward from year to year. No payments are due for such accumulated sick leave upon termination or 
retirement. 

The Aiiport's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follows GASB Statement No. 
16. Estimated accnied compensated ahsences resulting frorn unused vacation at the end of the tiscal year are 
recorded as long-term liabilities in the financial statements. No liability is recorded for non-vesting 
accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. This policy resulted in an accrual for compensated absences of 
$126,487 at December 31. 2023. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Airport considers all higlily 
liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The 
Airport had no cash equivalents at December 31. 2023. Restricted cash is also included in the cash balances for 
purposes of the statement of cash flows. 

Investments - Under State law, the Airport may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes or certificates, 
time certificates of deposit of State banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiana, or any other 
jiyierully insured investment. In accordance with GASB Staternent No. 31. "Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools", investments rneeting the criteria 
specitied in the Statement are stated at fair value. Investments that do not rneet the requirernents are stated at 
cost. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(A) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits and Investments - The Airport is exposed to custodial credit risk as it 
relates to their deposits and investments with financial institutions. The Airport's policy to ensure there is no 
exposure to this risk is to require each financial institution to pledge their own securities to cover any amount in 
excess of Federal Depository Insurance Coverage. These securities must he held in the Airport's narne. 
Accordingly, the Airport had no custodial credit risk related to its deposits at December 31, 2023 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - In some instances, the GASB requires 
a envernment to delay recoenition of decreases in net position as expenditures until a future period. In other 
instances. governments are required to delay recognition of increases in net position as revenues in a future 
period. In these c ircumstanc es, deferred out flows of resources and deferred inflows of resources result from the 
delayed recognition ot expenditures or revenues, respectively. 

Leases Receivable - The Airport leases property to commercial airlines, car rental companies. concessionaires, 
fixed based operators who service the airline industry. the FAA. and others. A significant portion of these leases 
are non-cancelable operating leases 

The Airport implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, for the year ended December 31, 2022. Under this 
statement, the lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby 
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about the government's leasing activities. The leases 
receivable is measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term 
discounted usine an incremental borrowing rate of the Airport which ranged from 2 03% to 3.23% 

Pensions - The Airport funds all of its accrued pension cost at the time of contrihution. for its contributory 
pension plan which covers substantially all of its employees. Annual costs are acmarially computed using the 
entry age normal cost method. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liahilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates 

Long-term Deht - Lone-term deht and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities Bond issuance 
costs. excludine any prepaid bond insurance, are reported as expense in the year of debt issuance. Bonded debt 
premiums, discounts. and gainslosses on refimding are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using 
the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. As of 
December 31. 2023, the Airport has no outstanding debt. 

Post-Employment Benefits - The Airport does not offer any of these types of benefits to employees and 
therefore has no liahility. 

Federal Financial Assistance - The Airport receives financial assistance for costs of construction and 
improveinents to airport facilities through grants from the Federal Aviation Administration. The Airport is on 
the reimbursement hasis for funds received for financial assistance. 



LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(B) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

State laws authorize the government to invest in obligations of the U S. Treasury, obligations guaranteed by the 
United States or any agency thereof, and bonds of this state or any subdivision of this state. 

Alt bank balances of deposits and investments as of the Staternent of Net Position date are entirely insured or 
collateralized by securities held hy the government's agent in the government's name 

Interest Rote Risk - As a means of hiniting its exposure to fair-vahie losses arising from risme interest rates, the 
Airport's investment policy limits the investment portfolio to maturities of less than one year. 

Credit Risk:concentration OCredit Risk - Because the Airport currently has no investments, there is no credit 
risk or concentration of credit risk. 

Cash included in the Statement of Cash Flows at December 31 is as follows: 

 

2023 

 

)01) 

Petty Cash S 400 $ 400 
Operating Account 

    

6.104.0065 

 

2.620,070 
Operatine Reserve 3),P5.703 

 

25.462,039 
PFC Account 1,353.136 

 

635,252 
CFC Account 334,282 

 

478,964 
Terminal Development Funds Account 10,074.761 

 

8,186,680 
1% Airport Tax Account 16.178 

 

4.540,527 
Grant Account 1.696,094 

 

6.83),01 2 
Cash Per Statement of Cash Flows S 51.704.559 5 48.755,944 

(C) AD VALOREM TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as ofJanuary 1 of each year. Taxes are levied by the 
Parish Government in early fill and are actually billed to the taxpayers hy the Assessor in C)ctober or 
November. Billed taxes are due by December 31, becoming delinquent on January 1 of the following year. 

The taxes are based on assessed values determined by the Tax Assessor of Lafayette Parish and are collected by 
the Lafayette Parish Sheriff. The taxes are remitted to the Airport net of a deduction for Assessor's Pension 
Fund contributions. 

That portion of the ad valorem taxes dedicated to operations and maintenance of the Airport was assessed to 
property owners in Lafayette Parish at 1.71 mills on property with assessed valuations totaling S2,357,313,866 
less homestead exemptions of S439,437,957 for 2023. 

_1) 



LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(D) PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE 

During the 2016 fiscal year, the Airport submitted an application to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
to impose a Passenaer Facility Charge (PFC) at the Lafayette Regional Airport. Approval of this application 
occurred in June 2017. The FAA approved the collection and use of PFC revenues for the new passenger 
terminal project commencing October 1, 2017. Under the terms of the aareement with the FAA, the Airport is 
allowed to charge a $4.50 PFC per passenver, to generate maxirnum net cumulative revenues of S21.139,375. 
In 2021, the Airport submitted an amendment to this application to reduce the maximum net cumulative PFC 
revenue to $10,453,982 of which S5.329,036 has been cumulatively collected. The FAA estimates that the 
charge expiration date will be August 1, 2029. The use of this revenue is restricted by the FAA for specific 
approved projects. At December 31. 2023, S1,353,136 had not been disbursed and is reported as restricted cash 
in the Statement of Net Position. 

(E) CUSTOMER FACILITY CHARGE 

Effective June 1. 2017, the Airport beaan collecting a Customer Facility Charge (CFC), which is collected for 
each rental car transaction day at a rate of S5.50 per transaction day. The revenues generated will be used to 
fund and finance the new Rental Car Facility in association with the New Terminal Development Project. The 
Airport has heen approved to initially col lect enough CFC funds to cover planning, design, project management 
costs and construction of the project. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the remaining CFC revenue 
collected and available to fund the project was S334.282 and is reported on the face of the Staternent of Net 
Position as Restricted. 

(F) GRANT FUNDS RECEIVABLE 

The Airport is in the process of performing various airfield improvement projects. including constniction of a 
new terminal. with the assistance of federal and state funds. Grant funds receivable at December 31, 2023, 
consisted of the following: 

State Department of Transportation S 2.348.193 
Louisiana Facilities Plannine 202.121 
Economic Development Administration 43,867 
FAA — AIP Project 44 00 
FAA — AIP Project 45 8.613 
FAA — AIP Project 47 397.201 
FAA — AIP Project 51 751,135 
FAA — AIP Project 52 1,015,813 
FAA - AIP Project 53 491,584 
FAA - AIP Project 54 551.311 
FA.A - AIP Project 55 778,210 
FAA — AIP Project 57 548.071 
FA.A — AIP Project 58 1,001,1 90 
FAA - AIP Project 59 2.171.351 
FAA - AIP Project 60 103,401 
FAA - AIP Project 62 56.876 
FAA — AIP Project 66 1.815,149 
FA.A — AIP Unallocated Retainage 173,466 

Total Grant Funds Receivable 5 12.638,564 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(G) RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Assets required to be held and/or used as specified in bond resolutions, grant agreements, or other contractual 
agreements have been reported as Restricted Assets. 

(H) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of changes in property and equipment: 

 

Beginning 
Balance 

12/31/2022 Additions 
Disposals/ 
Transfers 

Ending 
Balance 

12/31/2023 
Hangers and Buildings $ 84,469,530 $ - $ (559,448) $ 83,910,079 
Runways and Navigation Aids 124,633,623 

 

(7,127,253) 117,506,370 
Service Roads and Parking 9,495,247 9,400,719 

 

18,895,967 
Other Permanent Improvements 24,663,653 1,322,565 (1,668,977) 24,317,241 
Equipment 21,774,544 920,455 (27,302) 22,667,700 
Furniture and Fixtures 1,440,539 - (77,684) 1,362,855 

 

$ 266,477,136 $ 11,643,740 $ (9,460,663) $268,660,213 
Less: Accumulated 

    

Depreciation and 

    

Amortization (142,777,614) (12,777,384) 9,460,663 (146,094,335) 
Net Property and Equipment $ 123,699,522 $ 12,498,727 $ (731,276) $ 122,565,878 

Land $ 6,191,076 $ - $ - $ 6,191,076 
Construction in Progress $ 139,744,407 $ 22,697,011 $ (10,506,250) $ 151,935,168 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2023, was $12,777,384. 

The Airport leases its property to various commercial and governmental operations, with a significant portion 
of these leases being non-cancellable. The cost of leased building property and improvements is $87,632,924, 
and the amount of accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2023 is $47,750,655. 

(I) LEASES RECEIVABLE 

The Airport implemented GASB 87 — Leases for the year ended December 31, 2022. Under this statement, a 
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources on leases that meet the 
criteria of the standard. Excluded from these calculations are all regulated leases, which are defined as 
aeronautical for airport purposes, and any short-term leases. The leases receivable is measured at the present 
value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate which ranged from 2.03% to 3.23% at time of implementation and continues to be used for any 
new leasing agreements. 

The Airport's leasing operations consist of the leasing of office and terminal space to airlines, cargo carriers, 
rental car companies and other tenants in the aviation industry, as well as other non-aviation tenants. Lease 
terms are set by the Airport based on pre-set calculations for rates and charges based on several factors. 

- 24 - 



LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

LEASES RECEIVABLE - continued 

Significant lease agreements are described below: 

In January 2022, the Airport entered into a restaurant/bar/news and gift shop concession agreement with 
Oakwells Commuter Rail, LLC for a term of three (3) years commencing January 20, 2022, with two (2) one-
year option terms through January 19, 2027. The agreement contains a minimum annual guaranteed (MAG) 
of $60,000 paid monthly. The concessionaire shall make monthly payments to the Airport for a percentage of 
gross receipts from all sales based on a tiered system for calculation and annually will pay the greater of this 
calculation or the MAG. 

The Airport has entered into agreements with four (4) rental car companies for the use of certain Airport 
facilities for parking and rental car administration. The terms of these agreements include a set monthly 
amount for terminal floor rent, ready return parking rent, Quick Turnaround Facility rent as well as a fixed 
minimum annual guaranteed (MAG) payments. The agreements also outline additional contingent payments 
based on each company's annual sales volume of business. These leases commenced on January 20, 2022, 
with a term of 3 years, with two options to renew for additional one-year term. Each lease agreement outlines 
the annual amounts due for each type of payment due. 

Minimum Annual Guaranteed payments for each company are as follows: 

Rental Car Company Name 2023 2024 2025 2026 

Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC $276,016 $284,296 $287,139 $290,011 

The Hertz Corporation $191,845 $205,468 $220,056 $235,680 

EAN Holdings, LLC - Enterprise $173,432 $173,433 $173,434 $173,435 

EAN Holdings, LLC — Alamo/National $173,433 $173,434 $173,435 $173,433 

The Airport entered into three (3) land leases with a local automobile dealership for expansion of the 
dealership. The terms of these leases are as follows: 

• A ten (10) year lease beginning April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2027 with an initial lease payment of 
$40,122 per year, paid monthly with annual consumer price index (CPI) adjustments using the month 
of January. At December 31, 2023, the annual lease payment is $46,502, paid monthly. 

• An eighteen (18) year lease beginning April 1, 2008 through March 31, 2026 with an initial lease 
payment of $35,794 per year, paid monthly with annual consumer price index (CPI) adjustments using 
the month of March. At December 31, 2023, the annual lease payment is $50,893, paid monthly. 

• A fifteen (15) year lease beginning December 1, 2011 through March 31, 2026 with an initial lease 
payment of $28,967 per year, paid monthly with annual consumer price index (CPI) adjustments using 
the month of November. At December 31, 2023, the annual lease payment is $39,325, paid monthly. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(I) LEASES RECEIVABLE - continued 

In Septernber 2007, the Airport entered into a ten (10) year land lease with a third party. This lease was 
extended in 2017 for an additional ten (10) years, now expiring August 31, 2027. Lease payments were set at 
$55,200 per year, paid monthly for the first tive (5) years of the lease term, with the second five (5) years of the 
lease term being increased to $63,480 per year, paid monthly. Beeinning with the extension period, the lease 
payments will be adjusted by the averaue consurner price index (CPI) fix-  the previous (5) years using the rnonth 
of July. At December 31, 2023, the annual lease payment is $343,377, paid monthly 

The Airpon has entered into two (2) leases with a helicopter transportation company to contract and operate in 
a facility. 

• In Julv 2005, the Airport entered into a sixteen (16) year Iand lease with a third party to huild a facility. 
This lease also contains tluee (3) tive (5) year options. The initial term of the lease expired on June 
30, 2021, at which time, the tirst option was exercised on July 1, 2021 and is through June 30, 2026. 
Lease payments were originally set at S48.000 per year. paid monthly with annual consumer price 
index (CPI) adjustments using the month of February. At December 31, 2023, the annual lease 
payment is $75,522, paid monthly 

• In October 2023. the Airport entered into a five-vear lease with this third party for use a helicopter, 
transportation, maintenance and repair office facility. The lease also contains two (2) five (5) year 
options. The initial term of the lease expires on October 28, 2(128 Lease payments were onamally set 
at S625,000 per year. paid monthly with annual consumer price index (CPI) adjustments usine the 
month of July At December 31, 2023, the annual lease payment is $625,000, paid monthly. 

In May 2022, the Airport purchased improved real estate, including all huildings. stnictures, improvements, 
fixtured etc. located adjacent to the Airport, front the Lafayette Parish School Board. This purchase will 
provide the Airport with additional property for future expansion. At the time of sale, the Airport and the 
School Board entered into a lease agreement to lease portions of the property purchased. The lease term is from 
May 16, 2022 through May 15, 2027. Phase 1 of the lease is from May 16, 2022 throuah May 15, 2024 with an 
annual rent of S273.207, paid monthly and includes building. improvements. fixture. etc. Phase 2 of the lease iN 
frorn May 16. 2024 through May 15. ?fi'_17 with an annual rent of S51,440, paid monthly and is denoted as lease 
of the arehouse premises" only. 

In April 2008, the Airport entered into a ten (10) year land lease with the local university. The lease also 
contains three (3) ten (10) year options. The initial term of the lease expired on March 31, 2018, at which time, 
the tirst option was exercised through March 30, 2028. The initial lease payment was $86,000 per year, paid 
monthly with annual consurner price index (CPI) adjustments using the month of March. At December 31, 
2023, the annual lease payment is $134,193, paid monthly 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES T() FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(I) LEASES RECEIVABLE - continued 

Lease receivahle, lease revenue and lease interest revenue related to these lona-term leases are as follows: 

Property Lease Lease Lease 
Revenue Interest 

 

Date Receivable 

Oakwells Commuter Rail, LLC 1•20;') S 175,844 S 56,305 ti 6.621 

Rental Car Companies (4) 1:20/2022 3,694.350 1.165,436 131.33") 

Moss Motors, Inc. various 353,151 125.7'82 13.650 

Brenton Investment Corporation 91 '2017 237,156 61.144 8,714 

PHI Aviation, LLC 71/2005 2 .917.966 110,080 14.630 

Lafityette Parish School Board 5 16:2022 246,796 133,569 12.550 

ULL Marine Survival 4 .1 ?UU£+ 53?,1')£+ 115.8?0 19.202 

(3ther Leases various 89,168 72.303 7,123 

Total 

 

$ 8.246,629 S 1,841).439 S 213.831 

Future payment due to the Airport under these agreements are as follows: 

Year Endina December 31 

 

Princi al Interest 
20)4 

 

$ 2.300,020 $ 226.100 
2025 

 

2,205,271 155,250 
20)6 

 

2.204.762 83.467 
2027 

 

948,965 31.070 
2028 

 

567.303 8,171 
2029 and heyond 

 

20.308 665 

 

Total $ 8,246.629 S 504.723 

(J) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

All full-time employees of Lafayette Recional Airport participate in the Parochial Employees' Retirement 
System (PERS) of Louisiana, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee retirement plan that was 
established by the Louisiana Legislature as ofIanuary 1, 1953. by Act 205 of 1952. The PERS was revised by 
Act 765 of 1979. re% ised by Act 584 of 2006. 

The System provides retirement benefits to employees of taxing districts of a parish or any hranch or section of 
a parish within the State which does not have their own retirement system, and which elects to hecome 
members of the System 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(.I) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes 
only. Participants should refer to these appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Eligibility Requirements 

Ali Airport employees who work at least 28 hours a week shall hecome members on the date of ernployment. 
New employees meeting the age and Social Security criteria have up to 9(► days from the date of hire to elect to 
participate. 

Retirement Benefits 

Any member of Plan A can retire providing he,she meets one of the following criteria: 

For employees hired prior to January 1, 2007: 

a) Thirty years of creditable service regardless of age. 
b) Twenty-five years of creditable service at ace 55 
c ) Ten years of creditable sell,' ice at age 60. 
d) Seven years of creditable service at age 65. 

For employees hired after January 1, 2007: 

a) Thirty years of creditable service at age 55. 
b) Ten years of creditahle service at age 62. 
c) Seven years of creditable service at age 67. 

General ly, the monthly arnount of the retirement allowance of any member of Plan A shall consist of an arnount 
equal to three percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his.her years of creditable 
service. However, under certain conditions. as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specitied 
arnounts. 

Survivor Benefits 

Upon death of any member of Plan A .with five (5) or more years of creditable service who is not elicible for 
retirement, the Plan pro% ides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children, as outlined in the 
statutes 

Any member of Plan A. who is eligihle for normal retirement at time of death. the surviving spouse shall 
receive an automatic Option 2 benefit, as outlined in the statutes. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(.I) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN — continued 

Disability Benefits 

For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability henetit if they were hired prior to 
January 1. 2007, and has a least tive y ears of creditable service or if hired after January 1. 2007, has seven years 
of creditable service, and is not eliaible for normal retirement and has been ofticially certitied as disabled hy 
the State Medical Disability Board. 

Upon retirement caused hy disability, a member of the Plan shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser 
of an amount equal to three percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of 
service, not to be less than fifteen, or three percent multiplied by years of service assuming continued service to 
age sixty for those members who are enrolled prior to January 1, 2007, and to age sixty-two for those members 
who are enrolled January 1, 2007, and later. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

Act 338 of 1990 established the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) for the Retirement System. DROP is 
an option for that member who is eligihle for normal retirement 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement, any member of Plan A who is eligihle to 
retire may elect to participate in the DROP in which they are enrolled for three years and defer the receipt of 
benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable, hut employee contributions 
cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would he payable, had the person elected to cease employment and 
receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specitied period of participation, a participant in 
the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments into the account, a 
true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or roll over the fund to an Individual Retirement 
Account (IRA) 

Interest is accrued on the DROP benefits for the period between the end of DROP participation and the 
member's retirement date 

For individuals who becoine eligihle to participate in the DROP on or after January 1. 2004, all amounts which 
remain credited to the individual's subaccount after termination in the Plan will be placed in liquid asset money 
market investments at the discretion of the board of tnistees. These subaccounts may be credited with interest 
based on money market rates of return or, at the option of the System, the funds may he credited to self-directed 
subaccounts. The participant in the self-directed portion of this Plan must agree that the benefits payable to the 
participant are not the obligations of the state or the System, and that any returns and other rights of the Plan are 
the sole liability and responsibility of the participant and the designated provider to which contributions have 
been made. 
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A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(.I) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

Cost of Living Increases 

The Board is authorized to provide a cost of livina allowance for those retirees who retired prior to July 1973. 
The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full calendar year since retirement 
and rnay only he granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of normal 
requirements. 

In addition, the Board may provide an additional cost of living increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are 
over age sixty-five equal to 2% of the member's benefit paid on October 1. 1977. (or the member's retirement 
date, if later). Also, the Board may provide a cost of living increase up to 2.5% for retirees 62 and older (RS 
11 :1937). Lastly, Act 270 of 2009 provided for further reduced actuarial payrnents to provide an annual 2.5% 
cost of living adjustment commencma at aae 55. 

Employer Contributions 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially detennined each year. For the year 
ended December 31. 2022, the actually determined contribution rate was 7.10% of member's compensation for 
Plan A. However, the actual rate for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. was 11.50% for Plan A. 

The total contributions for the years ended December 31. 2023, 2022 and 2021 were $195,542, S180,789, and 
$175,696, respectively. As of December 31. 2023, the Airport has a zero fourth quarter pension contrihution 
liability. 

According to state statute, the System also receives 1'4 a I% of ad valorem taxes collected within the respective 
parishes. except for Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes. The System also receives revenue sharing funds 
each year as appropriated by the Legislature. Tax monies and revenue sharing monies are apportioned between 
Plan A and Plan B in proportion to the member's compensation. These additional sources of incorne are used as 
additional employer contributions and are considered support from non-einployer contrihuting entities. 

Schedule of Employer Allocations 

The schedule of employer allocations reports the historical employer contributions. in addition to the employer 
allocation percentage for each participating employer The historical employer contributions are used to 
detennine the proportionate relationship of each ernployer to all employers of Parochial Ernployees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana. The employer's proportion was determined on a basis that is consistent with the manner 
in which contributions to the pension plan are determined The resulting allocation percentages were used in 
calculating each employer's proportionate share of the pension amounts. 

The allocation method used in determining each employer's proportion was based on the employer's 
contrihutions to the plan during the fiscal year ended Deceinber 31. 2023, as compared to the total of all 
ernployers' contributions received hy the plan during the fiscal year ended Decemher 31, 2023. 

Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer 

The schedule of pension amounts by employer displays each employer's allocation of the net pension 
liability, the various categories of deferred outflows of resources, the various categories of defened inflows 
of resources, and the various cateaories of pension expense The schedule Of pension amounts by employer 
was prepared using the allocations included in the Schedule of Employer Allocations. 
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OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(.I) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The net pension liability'(asset) was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments 
to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those 
employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position 

The components of the net pension liability(asset) of the System's etnployers determined in accordance with 
GASB No. 67 as of December 31. 2022 are as follows: 

PLAN A 

Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Total Net Pension Liability(Asset) 

I; 4,658,944.882 
4,274,065.818  

S 384,879.064     

The Airport's allocation is 0.247687% of the Total Net Pension Liability. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assurnptions used in determinm2 the total pension liability as of 
December 31, 2022, are as follows. 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Investment Rate of Return 

Projected Salary Increases 

Mortality Rates: 

Expected Remaining Service 
Lives 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

Inflation Rate  

Decemher 31. 2022 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

6 40%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

4.75% 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Health Retirees 
Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tahle for Cieneral 
Employees 
Pub-2010 Puhlic Retirement Plans Mortality Tahle for General 
Disabled Retirees 

4 years for Plan A 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on benefits 
currently being paid by the Systern and includes previously granted 
cost of living increases. The present values do not include provisions 
for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees 

2 30% 
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A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(.I) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6 40% for Plan A. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions front plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers and non-employer contributing entities 
will he made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC (Puhlic Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee) taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on those 
assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan mernbers Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investrnents was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a triangulation 
method which integrated the capital asset pricing model (CAPM) (top-down), a treasury yield curve approach 
(bottom-up) and an equity building-block model (bottom-up). Risk return and correlations are projected on a 
fbrward-looking basis in equilibrium. in which best-rstimates of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns. net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
rates are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weiching the expected furure real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.10% and an adjustment 
for the effect of rebalancing:diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return is 7 70% for the 
year ended December 31, 2022. 

Best estimates of aritlunetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's tareet asset 
allocation as of December 31, 2022. are summorized in the followina table: 

Asset Class Target Asset Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate of 

Return 
Fixed Income 33% 1.17% 
Equity 51% 3.58% 
Alternatives 14% ().73% 
Real Assets 2% 0.1.2q., 

Totils 1(10'N) 5.600.„ 

Inflation 

  

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

 

7.7096 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed on plan data fbr the 
period January 1. 2013, through December 31, 2017. The data was assigned credibility weightine and combined 
with a standard table to produce current levels of rnortality. As a result of this study. mortality for employees 
was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Employees multiplied hy 
130% for males and 125% for females, each with full generational projection using the MP2018 scale. In 
addition. mortality fbr annuitants and beneficiaries was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement plans 
Mortality Tahle for Healthy Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP2018 scale. 

For Disabled annuitants, mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Puhlic Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
General Disabled Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females. each with full generational 
projection using the MP2018 scale 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(.I) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability: (asset) of the participating employers as of December 31, 2022 
calculated using the discount rate of 6.40%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would he if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.4(1%). or one percentage point higher 
(7.40%). than the current rate. 

Plan A 
Current 

1% Discount 
Decrease Rate Increase 
5.40% 7.40% 

Net Pension Liability lAsset) S 2.357.532 

Change in Net Pension Liability  

S 953.195 $ (223,977) 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended December 31, 2022. were recognized in the current 
reporting period as pension expense except as follows: 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

Differences between expected and actual experience with reciard to economic or demographic factors in the 
measurement of the total pension liability were recounized in pension expense using the straight-Eine 
amortization method over a closed penod equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all 
ernployees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The difference between expected and 
actual experience resulted in a deferred inflow of resources in the amount of 5105,030 and a deferred outflow 
of resources in the arnount of $35,246 for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were recognized in 
pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year period. The difference 
between projected and actual investment earnings resulted in a deferred outflow of resources in the amount of 
$1,006,374 for the year ended December 31. 2023. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The changes of assumptions about future econonuc or demographic factors were recognized in pension expense 
using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the av erne of the expected remaining 
service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The changes of 
assumptions resulted in deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $30,423 for the year ended December 
31, 1013. 
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

Change in Proportion 

Changes in the employer's proportionate shares of the collective net pension liability and collective deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were recognized in 
employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided pensions through the 
pension plan. The unamortized amounts arising from changes in proportion resulted in deferred outflows of 
resources in the amount of $10,185 and deferred inflows of resources in the amount of $28,363 for the year 
ended December 31, 2023. 

Contributions — Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the 
average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a pension through the 
pension plan. The resulting deferred inflow/outflow and amortization is not reflected in the schedule of 
employer amounts due to differences that could arise between contributions reported by the System and 
contributions reported by the participating employer. 

Retirement System Audit Report 

The Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's 
website: www.persla.org or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: 
www .11a . state. la .us. 

Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2023, the Airport reported Net Pension Liability/(Asset) of $953,295 for its proportionate 
share of the Net Pension Liability of the Plan. 

The Net Pension Liability/(Asset) was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
Airport's proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) was based on a projection of the Airport's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined. 

Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions - continued 

At December 31, 2022, the Airport's proportion was 0.247687%, which was an increase of 0.033916% from its 
proportion measured as of December 31, 2021. 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Airport recognized pension expense of $388,885 adjusted for the 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions, $(3,169). 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

At December 31, 2023, the Airport reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experiences 35.146 105.030 

Changes of Assumptions 30,-123 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 1,006.374 

 

Change in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 10,185 28,363 

Employer contrihutions subsequent to measurement date - 

  

Prior (180.7891 

 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date - Current 195,542 

 

Total 1.096.981 S 133.393 

Deferred outflows of resources of $195,542 related to pensions resulting from the Airport's contributions 
subsequent to the measurernent date will he recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability. (Asset) in 
the fiscal year ended December 31. 2023. 

Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources ancl Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions - continued 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflow s of resources and deferred intlows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

1231.2023 $ 20.845 
12 31.2024 $ 156.164 
12.'31/2025 $ 311.167 
12.31.2026 S 447.984 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(K) OPERATING LEASES AND AGREEMENTS 

In January 2022, the Airport entered into new lease agreements with the three (3) passenger airlines servinn 
the Airport. The lease terrn under each of these agreements is for an initial tenn of three (3) years with one (1) 
additional option tenn of two (2) years. to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

As part of these new lease aareements, a revised rates and charges schedule was agreed upon for use of 
preferential use space, common use space. fees fbr haggage claim belts. passenger loadiu bridge use. public 
address system access points, and landing fees Additional charges for telephone, cable. internet and wifi 
services are also outlined. The rates are applied to the individual airlines based on the prior year enplaneinents 
and deplanements. 

The followmn is a schedule by year of- minimum future lease payments for preferential and common use space 
from airlines as of Decemher 31, 2023: 

Year Endina December 31. 
2014 S 2,229,782 
2025 2,296,336 
2026 2.365,391 

Total Minirnum Future Rentals S 6.891,508 

The Airport also leases buildings, hanaars, land and terminal space to a number of other tenants. Due to the 
nature of those leases, they are all classified as operating leases. 

The following is a schedule by year of minimum future rentals on non-eancelahle operating leases as of 
December 31, 2023: 

Year Ending December 31. 
2024 S 2.627,800 
/0,5 2.140,005 
2026 1,929,971 
2027 1.240,735 
)018 1.117,228 

Thereafter 2,674.913 
Total Minimum Future Rentals S 11,730.652 

Certain rentals included above relate to tenants with scheduled annual CPI adjustments. Those annual 
adjustments could not he determined Therefore, the 2023 rents were used for all years 

(L) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Airport is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of. damage to, and destruction of assets: 
errors and omissions: and natural disasters. The Airport is insured to reduce the exposure to these risks. 
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(M) COMMITMENTS AND CONTIGENCIES 

On a continuing basis, the Airport enters into construction contracts for improvements to the Airport. At 
December 31. 2023, there are several ongoing projects for which contracts have been entered and work is in 
progress The majority of the costs of these projects are heing funded hy Airport Improvement Program Grants 
through the Federal Aviation Administration and the State of Louisiana, Departrnent of Transportation. 

The Airport participates in a number of federal tinancial assistance programs. Although the grant programs 
have been audited through December 31. 2023. in accordance with Title 2 U S. Code of Federal Regulutwns 

Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cosi Principles. and Audit Requirements jOr Federal Aivards 

(Uniform Guidance). these prograrns are still subject to financial and cotnpliance audits hy governmental 
agencies. Such audits could result in expenses being disallowed under the terms and conditions of the grants. In 
the opinion of management, such disallowances. if any, would be immaterial. 

(N) DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statetnent element. defeiTed outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and thus. will not he recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense:expenditure) until then. The Airport has items relating to pension that qualify for reporting 
in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate fi nancial statetnent element, defened inflows of resources. represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not he recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. The Airport has items relating to pension, leases and properry taxes that qualify for 
reporting in this category. 

(O) COMPENSATION OF COMMISSION MEMBERS 

The Airport Commission in comprised of a seven (7) member board who serve without compensation 

(P) COMPENS VTION. BENEFITS XND OTHER PAYMENTS TO EXECUTIN E DIREC TOR 

A detail of compensation. benefits, and other payments paid to the Executive Director, Steven Picou, for the 
year ended December 31, 2023: 

Purpose Amount 
Salary and Related Benefits S 195,719 
Benefi ts - Insurance S 21,017 
Benefits - Retirement S 18.696 
Reimbursements - Phone S 1.200 
Travel 

 

Registration Fees S 1.585 
Conference Travel S 8,494 
Vehicle Usage S 636 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Q) DEDICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FLOW OF FUNDS - SALES TAX 

In November 2014, a one percent sales tax was approved hy the voters to be collected for a period of eight 
months, dedicated to the construction of a new tenninal at the Airport. Total collections not yet expended as of 
December 31. 2023, are S16.178 and are reported as restricted cash and restricted net position in these financial 
statements. 

(R) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

In 2022, the Airport iinplemented Governrnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 — 
Leases. With this statement, a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and deferred inflow of 
resources. This change was incorporated in the Airport's 2022 financial statements. During the year ended 
December 31. 2023, an error in these calculations related to one lease was noted which had the following effect 
on net position as reported at December 31, 2022: 

Net Position Deceinber 31, 20)1 $328.475,835 
Adjustments: 

Leases Receivable (,13,814 
Deferred Inflows - Leases O11,918) 

Restated Net Position. December 31, 2022 $328,677,731  

(S) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

As of December 31, 2023. the Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued se‘,.eral staternents not yet 
implemented hy the Authority. The statements that may impact the Authority are as follows. 

GA SB Statement I 00„-lecormiinz Cho ogcs and £rror Corrections-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62 
The primary objective of the Statement is to enhance accountiml and financial reporting requirements for 
accounting changes and error corrections The Statement is effective for fiscal years beeinning after June 15, 
2023, 

GASB Statement 101, Comrenswed Ah%-ence,. 
This Statement updates the recognition and measurernent guidance for compensated absences. The Statement is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 

Management is currently evaluating the effects of the new GASB pronouncements. The effect on 
iraplernentation of these new pronouncements on the Airport's financial statements has not yet been 
detennined. 

(T) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Airport has evaluated subsequent events through June 24. 2024. the date the financial statements were 
available to he issued 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

 

Admimstrative 
General 

Maintenance 
Contractual 

Services Total 
SALARIES AND COSTS OF EMPLOYMENT 

    

Salaries S 1,160.043 $ 554.666 $ $ 1,714.709 
Pavroll Taxes 18.003 9.1,7 

 

27.225 
Group Insurance 249.792 224.945 

 

474.737 
Worker's Compensation 8.737 23.329 

 

32.066 
Retirement Contributions 322.696 66.189 

 

388,885 

Total Salaries and Costs of Employment 1,759.271 878.351 

 

$ 2,637.622 

SUPPLIES 
Supplies and Minor Equipment '9,157 S 11,137 S 1 1,5S9 S 51,553 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

    

Advertisine S 388,907 S S S 188,907 
Postaee and Freight 3,204 

  

3,204 
Dues and Publications 9,451 

  

9,451 
ID Card SN stem 5.466 

  

5.466 
Environmental Expenses 156,142 - 

 

156,142 
Fuel and Oil 30 :O,357 15,427 47,814 
Fly Lafayette Campaiun Public Relation!: 16,201 

  

16,201 
Insurance 362,158 361.571 

 

723.729 
Miscellaneous 1,067 

  

1,067 
Terminal Building Equipment Contract 

  

1 01,501 1 01,501 
Professional Fees 620,092 

  

620,092 
Repairs and Maintenance 9.309 520.638 86.999 616.946 
Repairs and Maintenance - Leased Facilities 

 

90,842 

 

9{1,84? 
Telephone 104,141 14,202 

 

118,343 
Training 15,084 2,718 

 

17,812 
Travel 29.660 

  

29.660 
Unifiwnis 1,399 5,204 

 

6,603 
Utilities 

 

829,317 

 

829,317 
Parking Fee Management 416.116 

  

416,116 
Contracted Sell ices - 

    

Grounds Maintenance 

 

101,832 

 

101,832 
janitorial 

  

513,113 513,113 
ARFF Services 

  

760,377 760,377 
SecuritN 

  

1.241,866 1.241,866 

Total Other Services and Charges S 2.135.427  $ 1.955.691  $ 1.530,394  S 6.917,51' 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNNIENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Federal Grantor 

Program Title 

Assistance 

Listing 

Number 

Grant 

Number 

Federal 

Expendintres 

Amount to 

Subrecipients 

U.S. Department of Transportation 
Federal Aviation Administration 

    

Airport Improvement Projects 10 106 * 451 12,037 S 
Airport Improvement Projects 

 

#51 163,033 

 

Airport Improvement Projects 

 

E53 57,107 

 

Airport Improvement Projects 

 

/155 71,043 

 

COVID - 19 - Airport Improvement Projects 

 

#55 7,894 

 

Airport Improvement Projects 

 

#57 177,182 

 

Airport Improvement Projects 

 

459 1.990,035 

 

COVID - 19 - Airport Improvement Projects 

 

E59 221,115 

 

Airport Improvement Projects 

 

#60 81,758 

 

COVID - 19 - Airport Impro‘ement Projects 

 

'260 9.196 

 

Airport Improvement Projects 

 

#66 11.491,892 

 

Airport Improvement Projects-unallocated 

retainage 

 

n.a - ?'.770 

 

Subtotal Airport Improvement Projects 

  

14,506,062 

 

U.S. Department of Commerce: 
Passed Through Acadiana Planning Commission 

Investments for Public Works and Economic 

Development Facilities 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security: 

Passed Through Governor's Office of Homeland 

Security and Emergency Preparedness - 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

11 300 N:A 24.SI7 

97 036 N A 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S 14.:;30.679 S 

* - denotes a major pro€,ram 

NOTE• 

The above Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL ANN ARDS 
DECEMBER 31. 2023 

(A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accornpanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Lafayette Regional Airport under proarams of the federal aovernment for the year ended December 31. 2023. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance w ith requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Theretbre, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of. the basic financial statements. Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Government, it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Government. 

(B) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units, which is described in Note A to the 
basic tinancial statements for the year ended Decemher 31, 2023 Such expenditures are recognized followine 
the cost principle contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable 
or are limited as to reimbursement 

(C) INDIRECT COST RATE 

Lafayette Regional Airport has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate for the year ended 
December 31. 2023. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 

A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT OF 

LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

LOUISIANA PAROCHIAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

    

Empkiyer's 

  

Employer 

Proportion 

of the 

Employer 

Proportionate 

Share of the 

 

Proportionate Share 

of the Net Pension 

Liabilatv (Asset) as a 

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position 
Year Net Pension Net Pension Employer's Percentage of its as a Percentage 

ended Liability Liability Covered Co% ered of the Total 

December 31 (Asset) (Asset) Pa\ roll Pa\ roll Pension Liability 

21)15 1).184399% S 50,416 S 1.144,263 4 41'!'h 99.15''. 

2016 0.199408% S 524.899 S 1. I 3S.1411 46.12(!;, 9223",., 

2017 0.190934% S 393./31 S 1,161.126 33.87 )n 94.15% 

2018 0.019944% S (148,(r36) S 1.241,196 -11.93% 101.98% 

2019 0.207326% S 920.187 S 1,293.976 71 11% 88.86% 

2020 0.216515% S 10,192 S 1,441.679 0 71% 99.89% 

2021 0.197779% S (346,788) S 1.320,970 -26.25'!•;, 104.00% 

/027 0.213771% S (1,006,954) S 1,408,444 -71.49% 110.46% 

20'3 0.247687% S 953.295 S 1.565.741 60.88% 91.74% 

This schedule is intended to show information for In years. Additional years will be disphlyed as they become avathible. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 

A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT OF 
LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Contributions in C'ontributions 

Relation to as a % of 

Contractually Contractual Contribu non Employer's Covered 

Year ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Employee 

December 31, Contnbution Contribution (Excess) Pa‘ roll Pa\ roll 

2015 $ 183,082 $ 183,082 $ 5 1.144,263 16.006 

2016 S 170.329 S 167.130 $ 3.199 S 1.174.682 14.23% 

2017 $ (50,946 $ 146,/39 $ 4,707 S 1,161,120 17.59% 

2018 $ 155,150 $ 152,798 $ 7,35' S 1.241,196 12.31% 

2019 S 148.807 S 145.979 S 2.828 $ 1.'93.976 11.28% 

2020 $ 165,793 $ 158,339 $ 7,454 S 1.441,679 10.98% 

2021 $ 161,819 $ 161,819 $ S 1,320,970 12.25% 

2022 S 172.534 S 175,697 S (3,163) S 1.408.444 12.47% 

101 3 $ 180,060 $ 180,789 $ (729) $ 1.565,741 11.55% 

This schedule is intended to show mformation for lO years. Additional year.s will he displayed as they become available 
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DARNALL SIKES 
& FREDERICK 
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

OTHER LOCATIONS: 

Eunice Morgan City Abbeville 

  

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Lafayette Regional Airport 
Lafayette, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and the major funds of Lafayette Regional Airport, A Component Unit of the 
Consolidated Government of Lafayette, Louisiana, as of and for the year December 31, 2023, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Lafayette Regional Airport's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Lafayette Regional Airport's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lafayette Regional Airport's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Report on Compliance aud Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lafayette Regional Airport's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and matenal effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordinely, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Goverment Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Shindards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Darnaf‘ Sikes & yreckpick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 

June 24. 2024 
Lafayette, Louisiana 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Lafayette Airport Commission 
Lafayette, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Lafayette Regional Airport, a Component Unit of the Consolidated Government of 
Lafayette, Louisiana's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to 
audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
Lafayette Regional Airport's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2023. Lafayette 
Regional Airport's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, Lafayette Regional Airport complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
cornpliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal prograrns for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Cornpliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of Lafayette Regional Airport and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirernents relating to our audit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
cornpliance for each major federal prograrn. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lafayette 
Regional Airport's cornpliance with the cornpliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for cornpliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and rnaintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Lafayette 
Regional Airport's federal programs. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

()ur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncornpliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to ahove occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Lafayene Regional 
Airport's compliance hased on our audit. Reasonahle assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards. and the Uniforrn Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as 
fraud rnay invoke collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that. individual ly or in the aggregate, it would intluence the judgment made hy a reasonable user of the report 
on compliance about Lafayette Regional Airport's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a 
whole. 

In perforrning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemment Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance. we• 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisrn throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perfonn 
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding Lafayette Regional Airport's compliance with the cornpliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of Lafayette Regional Airport's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on intenia 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Lafayette Regional Airport's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that 
we identified during the audit. 

Report un Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control o% er compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions. to prevent, or detect 
and correct. noncompliance with a type of cornpliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weabiess in Internal conn.ol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that rnaterial noncornpliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not he prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in intelllul control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of cornpliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance. yet important enough to ment attention hy those charged with governance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might he material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations. during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. as detined above. However. material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
cornpliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended for the information of the management and Board of Commissioners of the Lafayette Regional 
Airport and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. However, this 
report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited. 

Danu4 Sikes & yrec&rick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 

June 24, 2024 
Lafayette, Louisiana 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

We have audited the financial statetnents of the Lafayette Regional Airport. a component unit of the Consolidated 
Government of Lafayette, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and have issued our report 
thereon dated June 24, 2024. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by Comptroller General of the United States. Our audit of the tinancial statements as of December 31, 2023, 
resulted in an unmodified opinion. 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

A. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Staternents 

Internal Control 
Control Deficiencies CI Yes RI No 
Material Weakness CI Yes El No 

Compliance 
Compliance Material to Financial Staternents O Yes CI No 

B. Managernent Letter 

Was a tnanagement letter issued? El Yes CI No 

C. FEDERAL AWARDS 

Major Prom-am Identification  

The Lafayette Regional Airport at December 31. 2023, had one major progranr Department of Transportation: 
Federal Aviation Administration - Airport Improvement Projects: Assistance Listing Number 20.106. 

Low-Risk Auditee 

The Lafayette Regional Airport is considered a low-risk auditee for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

Major Prooram - Threshold  

The dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B prograrns is S750,000 for the year ended 
December 31. 2023. 

Auditors' Report - Major Program 

An unmodified opinion has been issued on the Lafayette Regional Airport's compliance for its major program 
as of and for the year ended December 31. 2023. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

C. FEDERAL AWARDS - continued 

Control Deficiencies - MMor Program  

There were no control deficiencies noted during the audit of the major federal program. 

Compliance Finding Related to Mator Program  

The audit did not disclose any mate 'al noncompliance or questioned costs relative to its federal program. 

Section 11- Financial Statement Findings 

There were no control deficiencies ir instances of material noncompliance noted durinO the audit. 

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

The audit did not disclose any material noncompliance findings or questioned costs relative to its federal programs. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2923 

There were no prior year findings. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRA1VI AND 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Lafayette Airport Commission 
Lafayette, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program 

Opinion on the Passenger Facility Charge Program 

We have audited the Lafayette Regional Airport, a Component Unit of the Consolidated Government of 
Lafayette, Louisiana's compliance with the compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility 
Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), for its 
Passenger Facility Charge Program for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

In our opinion, Lafayette Regional Airport complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to its Passenger Facility Charge Program for the year ended 
December 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on the Passenger Facility Charge Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Passenger Facility Charge 
Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration. Our responsibilities 
under those standards and the Guide are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit 
of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of Lafayette Regional Airport and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of Lafayette Regional Airport's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Lafayette 
Regional Airport's Passenger Facility Charge Program. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of compliance 

Our objecti% es are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the cornpliance 
requirements referred to ahove occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Lafayette Regional 
Airport's compliance based on Our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards. and the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide fur Public Agencies, issued by the 
Federal Aviation Administration. will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. Noncornpliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to ahove is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that. individually or 
in the aggregate. it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on cornpliance about Lafayette 
Regional Airport's compliance with the requirernents of the Passenger Facility Charge Program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide ,fizr Public .4gencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, we. 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding Lafayette Regional Airport's compliance with the compliance requireinents referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of Lafayette Regional Airport's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide hr Public Agencies. 
issued hy the Federal Aviation Adrninistration. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Lafayette Regional Airport's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that 
we identified during the audit 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency iu internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent, or detect 
and correct. noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the Passenger Facility Charge Program on a 
timely hasis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance. such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of the Passenger Facility Charge Program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. A signfficant dqficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies. in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the Passenger Facility 
Charge Program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough 
to merit attention hy those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section ahove and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as detined above. However. material weaknesses or significant 
deticiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identitied. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efkctiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Guide. Accordingly, this report 
is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended for the information of the management and Board of Commissioners of the Lafayette Regional 
Airport, and the Federal Aviation Adrninistration and is not intended to he and should not be used by anyone other than 
those specified parties However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distrihution is not lnnited. 

Varna; Sikes & yrecarick 
(A Corporation of Certified Puhlic Accountants) 

June ?4, /01-1 
Lafayette, Louisiana 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES COLLECTED AND EXPENDED AND NOTES THERETO 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Revenue: 

Beginning 

Program Total 

FiD4 

Quarter 

Second 

Quarter 

Third 

Qiiarter 

Fourth 

Quarter 

Ending 

Program Total 

$ 16.638,120 

581,422 

$ 210.305 
7,790 

$ 220.801 

10.243 

S 216.341 

13.215 

S 254.307 

15.481 

S 17.539,874 

628.151 
Collections 

Interest 

Total Revenue 17.219,542 '18.00s 231.044 229,556 269,788 18.168,025 

Disl an sements 

      

Application 95-ul-C-03-LFT (Closed) 933,014 

    

933.024 

Application 98-i i2-11-u0-LFT (Clused) 150,000 

    

150.0u0 

Application 01-03-C-0u-LFT (Closed) 2.273,692 

    

2.273,692 

Application 05-04-C-0u-LFT (Closed) 2.677,464 

    

2.677,464 

Application 06-05-C-0u-LFT (Closed) 756,165 

    

756.165 

Application 08-0(i-C-0u-LFT (Closed) 3.7-18,286 

    

3.74),286 

Application 11-07-C-00-LFT (Closed) 1.693,028 

    

1.693.028 

Apphcatinn 17-08-I-00-LFT/l8-09-13-00-LFT: 

      

Pi eject - New Passengei Terminal 2.384,245 120.280 

 

110.319 

 

2.614.844 

Total Disbuisements 14.615,904 1211,280 

 

110.319 

 

14,846,503 

Net PFC Revenue 

 

97.ti 231.044 119.237 269.7N8 

 

PFC Account Balance $ fi35,?5? $ 733.067 $ 964.111 S 1.083,348 $ 1,353.136 $ 1.353,136 

SUMALNRY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

      

Basis of Accounrinp - The above schedule presents the revenues received from the PFC and expenditures Mewed on approved Projects The schedule has been 

prepared on the cash basas uf accounting which as not materially different from the accrual basis of accounting which as acquired hy Generally Accepted 

Accounting Ptincipl es (GAAPI 

See Independent Auditor's Repurt 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

I. No material weaknesses were identified durine the audit of the Passenger Facility Charge Program. 

The auditors' report on compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program expresses an unmodified 
opinion 

3. There were no audit findings related to the Passenger Facility Charge Program 

B. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None. 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT 

OF LAFAYETTE, LOUISIANA 

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM 
AUDIT SUNIMARY 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

1. Type of report issued on PFC tinancial statements. 

Type of report on PFC compliance. 

3. Quarterly Revenue and Dishursements reconcile with submitted quarterly 

 

X Unmodified Qualitied 

Qualified X Unmodified 

 

reports and reported un-liquidated revenue matches actual amounts X Yes No 

4. PFC Revemie and Interest is accurately reported on FAA Form 51M-127. X Yes Na 

5. The Puhlic Agency maintains a separate financial accounting record t0r 
each application. X Yes No 

6. Funds disbursed were for PFC eligible items as identified in the FAA 
Decision to pay only for the allowable costs of the projects X Yes No 

7. Monthly carrier receipts were reconciled with quarterly carrier reports. X Yes No 

8 PFC rcvenues were maintained in a separate interest-bearing capital 
account or commingled only with other interest-bearing airport capital 
funds 

 

Yes No 

9. Serving carriers were notified of PFC proaram actions:changes approved 
hy the FAA. X Yes No 

10. Quarterly Reports were transmitted (or available via wcbsito to remittim2 
carriers. X Yes No 

11. The Public Agency is in compliance with Assurances 5, 6, 7 and 8 X Yes No 

12. Project desian and implementation is carried out in accordance with 
Assurance 9. X Yes No 

13. Program administration is carried out in accordance with Assurance 10. X Yes No 

14. For those public agencies with excess revenue, a plan for the use of this 
revenue has been submitted to the FAA for review and concurrence. X Yes No 
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LAFAYETTE REGIONAL AIRPORT 
Lafayette, Louisiana 

Independent Accountant's Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 

A 
DARNALL SIKES 

& FREDERICK 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

2000 Kaliste Saloom Road, Suite 300 

Lafayette, LA 70508 

P  337-232-3312 

F  337-237-3614 
DSFCPAS.COM 

DARNALL SIKES 
& FREDERICK 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

OTHER LOCATIONS: 

Eunice Morgan City Abbeville 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Commissioners and Management of 
Lafayette Regional Airport 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance areas identified in the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period 
January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023. Lafayette Regional Airport's management is responsible for 
those control and compliance areas identified in the SAUPs. 

Lafayette Regional Airport has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the control 
and compliance areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 
31, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not 
address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report 
and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for 
their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the finctions noted above.  

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders, (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the finctions noted above.  

111. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the finctions noted above.  

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  



v. PayrolUPersonnel. including (I) payroll processine, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee 
rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written polteles and procedures were obhimed crud do address the functions noted above.  

vi. Contracting. including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terrns and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written policies and procedures were Obtained and do oddivs.) the functions noted above.  

Trawl and Expense Reimbursement, includine (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds hy 
category-  of expense, (3) documentation requirements. and (4) required approvers. 

Ifritten policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  

Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, i f applicable), including t 1) how cards 
are to he controlled, (2) allowahle business uses. (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of 
fuel card purchases). 

Written policies and procednrcs were obtained mut do address the fink:toms noted above.  

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohihitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-
1121. (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place. (3) system to monitor possihle 
ethics violations. and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notified of any changes to thr entity's ethics policy. 

Written policiar and procedures were obtained and do address the finictions noted above.  

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosurriEMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) deht service requirements. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the jimenons noted above.  

xi. Infirmation Technolov Disaster Recoveryllusiness Continuity. including ( I) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testingiverification that backups can be restored, (4) use 
of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches 'updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

Mitten policies and procedures vivre obtained and do address the funehom noted above.  

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including R.S. 42.342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsihilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (13) annual reporting. 

Written poheie.s and procedures were obtained and do address the finictions noted above.  

2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the boardfmance committee minutes for the fiscal period. as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the tiscal period, and 

i. Observe that the boardifinance committee inet with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the hoard's enahling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent 
document. 

No exceptions noted. 



il. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, ohserve whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
bud2et-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual hudget- to-actual, at a 
minimum. on all special revenue funds.Alternatively. Pr those entities reporting on the not-for-
profit accounting model. observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activny 

rehiring to public finds if those public fimds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections 

during the fiscal period. 

No exceptions noted.  

For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fiind 
balance in the general fund. If the general fimd had a negative ending unassigned fund balance 
in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal 
period referenced or included a formal plan to elinunate the negative unassigned fund balance in 
the general fund. 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. C)hserve whether the board:finance committee received written updates of the prouress of 
resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting 
until the findings are considered fullv resolved. 

Obtained the prior rear audit report and observed that there were no audit findings  

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management anti management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask managemem to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account. and ohserve that: 

Obtained listing of bank accounts from management and management's representation that the listing 
um complete.  

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closim date (e.g.. initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted.  

Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each hank reconciliation 
within one month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged), and 

No exceptions noted.  

Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for niore than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

No exceptions noted.  



4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

Ohtain a listing of deposit sites tbr the fiscal period where deposits for cash.checks;money orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained listing of deposit .snes and managetnents representation that the listing was complete  

B. For each deposit site selected, ohtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listmg is complete. Randomly select onr collection location for each deposit site (e.g., 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties ( if there are no written policies or procedures, then inquire of employees about 
their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each 
collection location such that 

Obtained lisung of collection location.s from management and management's representation that the 
hsting ssas conplete.  

i. Employees responsible tbr cash collections do not share cash drawers.iregisters: 

No exceptions noted.  

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparingimaking bank 
deposits, unless another employeeiofficial is responsible for reconciling collection docunientation 
(e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit: 

No exceptions.  noted  

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries 
to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee.bfficial is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit: and 

No exceptions noted.  

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and- or 
subsidiary ledgers, by reverme source and:or agency fund additions, is (are) not also responsible 
for collecting cash. unless another employeelofticial verities the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted.  

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for thett covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during the fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted.  

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure 43A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Alternatively, the practitioner may use a source document other than hank .statements Own selecting 
the deposit datesfin.  tasting. such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. 

E. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted.  



Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports. and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted.  

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exeeption.s. noted.  

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $1(30 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer) 

eyeepti(ms noted.  

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the oeneral ledger. 

No execpnons noted.  

5) Son-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listmg iN complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Ohmined listine of locations that process paments and manaeement's representation that thc listmg 
1.1.  is complete.  

B. For each location selected under procedure 45A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payrnent functions. Obtain wntten policies and procedures relating 
to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire of employees 
about their joh duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request. appro‘ mg a purchase. and 
placing an order or making the purchase; 

No exceptions noted.  

il. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

.Vo eyecptions' noted.  

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohihited from adding;modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files, 

No exceptions noted.  

iv. Either the employee official responsible for signing checks mails the payrnent or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

No exceptions noted.  

v. Only employeesiofficials authorized to sign checks approve thr electronic disbursement (release) 
of funds. whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire 
transfer, or some other electronic means. 

No exceptions noted.  

C. For each location selecte4.1 under procedure 45A ahoi, e, obtain tlie entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 



representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements thr each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction. and 

t. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related 
original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on 
the invoice were received by the entity. and 

No exceptions noted.  

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure 4-5B above, as applicable. 

No exceptions noted.  

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month sdected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements 
if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g.. sign checks) per the entity's pohcy, and (b) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made from 
the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative 
month and.'or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

No exceptions noted.  

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards. fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) tbr the fiscal period, including the card numhers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

Obtained listmg of active credit cards. honk debn cards, fnel cards, and P-cards, the card 

in/others and the 'tames of the persons who maintained possession cf the cards, and monagements  

representation that the hsting wa% complete.  

B. Using the listing prepared hy management. randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal penod. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement 
for each card (for a dehit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting 
documentation. and 

i. Observe whether there is et idence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e g., original receipts tbr credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive tbel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically 
approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such 
approl, al that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a 
Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported): and 

No exception.% noted.  

ii. Observe that finance charges and late tees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted.  

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, excluding 
fuel cards,  randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, 
and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 10 transactions 
subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itennzed 



receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether 
management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt 
statemenr that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions noted.  

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtained listing of travel and travel-related expense reimbursements and management's 
representation that the listing was complete.  

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

No exceptions noted 

11. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

No exceptions noted.  

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
#1A(vii); and 

No exceptions noted.  

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted.  

8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

Obtained listing of all contracts in effect and management's representation that the listing was 
complete.  
i.	 Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 

solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 



eYaTtion.; noted.  

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the gm eming body:board. if required by policy 
or law (e.g , Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

evccrioas noted.  

If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were made in cornpliance with the contract terms 
(e.g., if appnwal is required for any amendment, the documented approval); and 

No cxception.c noted.  

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the ternis and conditions of the contract. 

No cxception.c. noted.  

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. R.andomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and persoimel files. and affee paid salaries to authorized salariesipay rates in the 
personnel tiles. 

Obtained listing of employees and management's representation that the listing was complete.  

.411thorized salaries/pay rotes traced to personnel files without exception.  

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, 
and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g.. 
vacation. sick, compensatory); 

No exceptions noted.  

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials; 

No exceptions noted.  

Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records, and 

No exceptions noted.  

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary:pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

NO exceptions noted.  

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received tennination payrnents during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's 
termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to 
the employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or 



official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel tiles, and agree the termination 
payment to entity policy. 

NO exceptions noted.  

D. Ohtain managernent's representation that employer and employee portions of third-parry payroll 
related amounts te.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have 
been filed, by required deadlines. 

No exceptions-  noted.  

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A ohtain 
ethics documentation from management, and 

t. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee official completed one 
hour of ethics training dunng the calendar vear as required by R.S. 42:1170; and 

No exceptions noted.  

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. 

No exceptions noted.  

B. Inquire andor ohserve whether the aeency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

NO eXCeptiOIM 11Oted.  

111 Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds notes and other debt Instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for 
each debt instrunient issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Vo exceptions noted.  

B. Obtain a listing of bondsinotes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond:note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other fitnds required by the debt covenants). 

No cvccrioas noted.  

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
manamement's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriationts) to the 



leeislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required hy 
R.S. 24.523. 

No misappropriations of public Ands or assets noted.  

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud. waste, or abuse of public funds. 

No exceptions not&  

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has hacked up its critical data 
(if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up cntical 
data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored 
on the government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

ire p ofb n n ed the procedure and discussed the rmults with nranagement.  

ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent docurnentation that it has testedNerified that its 
baclaips can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing verifing backup restoranon) and observe evidence that the 
test:verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

ll'epellinmed the procechire and discussed the results ivrth management  

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
managernent's representation that the listing is cornplete. Randomlv select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting systern software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We pelyarmed the procedure and discussed the results with management.  

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) ming the list of 
terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Ohserve es idence that the selected terminated 
employees have been removed or disahled from the network. 

11-c perprined the procedure and discussed the results with management.  

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from the Payroll and Personnel procedure at #9A, 
obtain cybersecurity training and documentation from management, and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates that the employees/officials with access to the agency's information 
technology assets have completed cvhersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267. 

lf'e performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.  

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees:officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, ohtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from managernent, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates each employeeiofficial completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required hy R.S. 42:343. 



No cyception.c noted.  

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website 
(or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

cyceptioas noted.  

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42:344: 

cYception.c noted.  

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements, 

ii. Numher of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency: 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a tinding that sexual harassment occurred, 

iv. Numher of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action: and 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

We were engaged by Lafayette Regional Airport to perform this agreed-upoii procedures eneagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established hy the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government .4adding Standards. We were not 
engaged to and did not conduct an examinatim or review engagement, the objective of which would he the 
expression of an Opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those control and compliance areas identified in the 
SALIN. Accordinely. we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to he independent of the Lafayette Regional Airport and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those control and compliance 
areas identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Da.rnag Sikes & Frederick 
A Corporation of Certified Public ,Accountants 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
May 8, 2024 
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